Planning Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2018 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.

Present: Councillor Bob Grove (Chairman); Councillors J Fairbrass, Ashbee, Campbell, K Coleman-Cooke, Connor, Edwards, Matterface, Messenger, D Saunders, Shonk, Taylor, Taylor-Smith and Tomlinson

In

Attendance: Councillors Crow-Brown, Dawson, L Fairbrass and M Saunders

285. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Buckley for whom Councillor Shonk was present, Councillor Fenner for whom Councillor Campbell was present and Councillor L. Piper.

286. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

287. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

It was proposed by the Vice Chairman, seconded by Councillor D Saunders and AGREED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 17 January 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman.

288. SITE VISIT

289. F/TH/17/0941 - 18 WESTERN ESPLANADE, BROADSTAIRS

PROPOSAL: Erection of three storey building containing 6No. 3-bed flats, sedum roof car port and refuse store following demolition of existing dwellinghouse

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice-Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2 The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted application as amended by the revised drawings numbered PR147.05 Rev D, PR147.06 Rev D, PR147.07 Rev D, PR147.04 Rev D, and PR147.03 Rev D, received 03 January 2018; and drawing numbered PR147.08, received 27 June 2018.

GROUND:

To secure the proper development of the area.

3 The refuse storage facilities as specified upon the approved drawing numbered PR147.04 Rev D and dated 03 January 2018 shall be provided prior to the first occupation of the flats hereby approved and shall be kept available for that use at all times.

GROUND:

To secure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interests of the amenities of the area, in accordance with policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

4 Prior to the first occupation of the development, the area shown for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles shall be operational prior to any part of the development hereby approved being brought into use. The area approved shall thereafter be maintained for that purpose.

GROUND:

Development without adequate provision for the parking or turning of cars is likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and detrimental to amenity and in pursuance of policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

5 Prior to the first occupation of the development, the secure cycle parking facilities, as shown on approved drawing no. PR147.04 Rev D and dated 03 January 2018, shall be provided and thereafter maintained.

GROUND:

In the interests of promoting increased cycling in accordance with Policy TR12 of the Thanet Local Plan

6 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces and hard surfacing of the development hereby approved shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved samples.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan

7 The windows to be provided in the side elevation of the development hereby permitted (excluding the high level windows), shall be provided and maintained with obscure glass, as agreed by the agent in correspondence received 5th January 2018.

GROUND:

To safeguard the privacy and amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjoining residential properties in accordance with policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

8 The high level windows to be provided within the side elevations of the development hereby permitted shall be provided and maintained with a cill height of not less than 1.73 metres above the finished internal floor level.

GROUND:

To safeguard the privacy and amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjoining residential properties in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

9 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved visibility splays of 2metres by 2metres behind the footway on both sides of the dwelling access with no obstructions over 0.6m above footway level shall be provided and thereafter maintained.

GROUND:

In the interest of highway safety.

10 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, shall secure the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

GROUND:

To ensure that the archaeological history of the site is recorded in accordance with the advice contained within National Planning Policy Framework.

11. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development, or in accordance with a programme of works to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives any written consent to any variation.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Thanet Local Plan."

Following debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

290. SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Following the publishing of the Planning Committee Agenda, the Council received an updated consultation response on items D04, D05 and D06 of the agenda from Kent County Council, specifically with regard to contributions towards secondary education. The updated requests follow a review of costs of various recently completed secondary projects in Kent, with the previous figures submitted based on build costs from 2008. The request increases the required contribution to £4,115 per house towards a secondary expansion project. This new figure applies to agenda items D04,D05 and D06 on this evening's agenda, therefore superseded the amounts stated within the individual reports consultation section and within the heads of terms section

regarding the secondary school contribution. This change does not change the project that the contribution has been requested for.

291. A01 - F/TH/17/1781 - LAND ADJACENT 1 ALBERT ROAD, BROADSTAIRS

PROPOSAL: Erection of 2No. 4-bed semi-detached dwellings

Speaking raising points of concern was Mrs Seal.

Speaking as town councillor was Councillor Binks.

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice-Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2 The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted application as shown on drawing numbered 17.1116.AE.PL03, 17.1116.AE.PL04, 17.1116.AE.PL05 and 17.1116.AE.PL06.

GROUND:

To secure the proper development of the area.

3 No development shall take place on any external surface of the development hereby permitted until details of the type, colour and texture of all materials to be used for the external surfaces of the dwellings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of location, type and height the boundary treatments, which shall be erected delineating the private gardens of the approved dwellings, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of either approved dwelling.

GROUND:

To ensure that the development is compatible with the amenities of the locality in accordance with the NPPF.

5 No further roof alterations whether approved by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 Class B or C of Part 1 Schedule 2 (or

any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), shall be carried out without the prior permission in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure a satisfactory external treatment and in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

6 The development hereby approved shall incorporate a bound surface material for the first 5 metres of the access from the edge of the highway.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

7 No development shall commence on site until full details of the surface water drainage arrangements have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage details shall be constructed as approved before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use.

GROUND:

To ensure that there is a satisfactory means of drainage in accordance with the NPPF.

8 The first floor windows in the rear elevation of the dwellings hereby approved (as shown on drawing numbered 17.1116.AE.PL05) shall be provided and maintained with level 5 obscure glass or equivalent.

GROUND:

To safeguard the privacy and amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjoining residential properties in accordance with policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

9 The windows to be provided at first floor level in rear elevation of the dwellings hereby approved shall be provided and maintained with a cill height of not less than 1.73 metres above the finished internal floor level.

GROUND:

To safeguard the privacy and amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjoining residential properties in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan."

Following debate, the Chairman AND THE Vice-Chairman withdrew the motion.

Then, it was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice-Chairman:

"THAT Members conduct a SITE VISIT in order to assess the situation."

Upon the motion being put to the vote, it was declared CARRIED.

292. <u>A02 - F/TH/17/1440 - QUEX PARK LAND ADJ TO THE SECRET GARDEN</u> NURSERY, QUEX PARK, BIRCHINGTON

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey timber framed therapy and education centre for children with special needs, with associated access and parking

Speaking under council procedure rule 20.1 was Councillor Dawson.

Speaking under council procedure rule was Councillor Crow-Brown.

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice-Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted drawings numbered

DB/QP/9/1, DB/QP/9/2, DB/QP/9/3, DB/QP/9/4,, DB/QP/9/6 and the Design, Access and Heritage Statement, received 28 September 2017, DB/QP/9/3 received 24 October, 2017, DB/QP/9/6a received 29 November 2017 and, DB/QP/9/1 (Phase 1) received 05 January 2018. GROUND:

To secure the proper development of the area.

3 Prior to the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby approved samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby approved shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved samples.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

4 No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written specification and timetable which has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that features of archaeological interest are properly examined and recorded.

5 Prior to the first use of development hereby approved, full details of both hard and soft landscape works, to include:

o species, size and location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas to be planted

o the treatment proposed for all hard surfaced areas beyond the limits of the highway

o walls, fences, other means of enclosure proposed

shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to adequately integrate the development into the environment in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Thanet Local Plan

6 All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the first use of any part of the development, or in accordance with a programme of works to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives any written consent to any variation.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Thanet Local Plan

7 Prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, the location, design and materials of the refuse storage and cycle storage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The refuse stores and cycle stores shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to the first use of the development hereby permitted, and thereafter maintained.

GROUND:

To secure a satisfactory standard of development and in the interests of the amenities of the area and to promote increased cycling, in accordance with Policies D1 and TR12 of the Thanet Local Plan.

8 Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved, details of how the development will enhance biodiversity shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented and thereafter retained.

GROUND:

To enhance biodiversity in accordance with the NPPF.

9 Prior to the removal of the section of hedgerow shown on the approved plan numbered DB/QP/9/6a received 29 November 2017, the applicant, or their agent, or successors in title, shall secure the implementation of a watching brief for the avoidance of disturbance to breeding birds and reptiles. The watching brief shall be in accordance with a written programme and specification, which has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

In order to safeguard protected species that may be present, in accordance with guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

10 In the event that contamination is found that was not previously identified at any time when carrying out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken at that time in accordance with a site characterisation report that shall be submitted to and approved in

writing by the Local Planning Authority and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including remediation measures to render harmless the identified contamination given the end use of the site and the surrounding environment, including controlled waters. The remediation measures shall be implemented as approved and completed prior to the recommencement of works. Prior to the occupation of the approved development and following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

11 Prior to the first use of the development, the area shown on submitted plan DB/QP/9/6a received 29 November 2017 for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles shall be operational prior to any part of the development hereby approved being brought into use. The area approved shall thereafter be maintained for that purpose.

GROUND:

Development without adequate provision for the parking or turning of cars is likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and detrimental to amenity and in pursuance of policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

12 The premises shall be used as a Therapy and Education Centre and for no other purpose including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification.

GROUND:

To secure the use as approved on the basis of the special justification for this particular development in the countryside, in accordance with Thanet Local Plan Policy CC1."

Upon being put to the vote, the motion was declared CARRIED.

293. <u>A03 - FH/TH/17/1579 - 27 DEVON GARDENS, BIRCHINGTON</u>

PROPOSAL: Installation of cladding at first floor level all elevations

It was proposed by Councillor Tomlinson, seconded by Councillor Saunders and RESOLVED:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted drawings numbered 17/287/MG/BR01 received 27 October 2017.

GROUND:

To secure the proper development of the area.

3 The first floor elevations of the property shall be finished in horizontal Cedral Weatherboarding cladding colour: Satin Country Cream, as annotated on the approved plan numbered 17/287/MG/BR01 received 27 October 2017.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.'"

294. <u>D04 - OL/TH/17/1342 - LAND NORTH EAST OF THE LENGTH, ST</u> <u>NICHOLAS AT WADE</u>

PROPOSAL: Outline planning application for the erection of up to 25 houses with all matters reserved

Speaking in favour of the application was Mrs Mills.

Speaking raising points of concern was Mr Hamment.

Speaking as parish councillor was Councillor Bryant.

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be DEFERRED AND DELEGATED for approval subject to receipt of Section 106 agreement securing required planning obligations and the following conditions:

1 Approval of the details of the access to, appearance, layout and scale of any buildings to be erected and the landscaping of the site, (herein called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced.

GROUND:

As no such details have been submitted.

2 Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

3 Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

4 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 2 years from the date of the approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

5 Details pursuant to condition 1 shall identify a minimum of 15% of housing to lifetime home and wheelchair standards and include the specification of such dwellings.

GROUND:

To meet the housing needs of the community in accordance with saved policy H8 of the local plan.

6 Details to be submitted pursuant to condition 1 shall include the location and size of the affordable housing units.

GROUND:

To ensure that the required level and type of affordable housing is provided in accordance with saved policy H14 of the Local Plan.

7 No less than 70% of the total number of dwellings constructed pursuant to this planning permission shall be dwellings of two or more bedrooms.

GROUND:

To ensure the provision of a mix of house sizes and types to meet a range of community needs in accordance with saved policy H8 of the Local Plan.

8 Details pursuant to condition 1 shall include full details (in the form of scaled plans and/or written specifications) to illustrate the following: i) parking provision in accordance with adopted standard;

ii) Turning areas;

iii) Secure, covered cycle parking facilities.

The scheme shall be implemented as approved prior to the first occupation of the units hereby approved.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

9 No development shall take place until full details of the proposed highway works have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include:

- details of the proposed footpath located to the site's frontage with The Length;
- details of the proposed uncontrolled crossing points; and
- details of the proposed upgrade to the existing bus stop to the south east of the site

together with a timescale for their provision.

These works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be permanently retained.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety and traffic flow in accordance with saved local plan policy TR16.

10 The development hereby approved shall incorporate bound surface materials for the first 5 metres of any access from the edge of the highway.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

11 The gradient of any access shall be no steeper than 1 in 10 for the first 1.5 metres from the highway boundary and no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

12 Details pursuant to condition 1 (in the form of scaled plans and/or written specifications) shall include , but not necessarily be limited to, the following; proposed roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, sewers, retaining walls, service routes, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, accesses, carriageway gradients, driveway gradients and street furniture.

The development shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted.

GROUND: In the interests of highway safety. 13 Prior to the first occupation of any of the units hereby approved the following works between a dwelling and the adopted highway shall be completed:

i) Footways and/or footpaths, with the exception of the wearing course;

ii) Carriageways with the exception of the wearing course but including a turning facility, highway drainage, visibility splays, street lighting, street nameplates and highway structures (if any).

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

14 Prior to the first installation of any external lighting, a detailed outdoor lighting scheme shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the type of lights, the orientation/angle of the luminaries, the spacing and height of the lighting columns, the extent/levels of illumination over the site and on adjacent land and the measures to contain light within the curtilage of the site. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme and thereafter maintained as agreed.

GROUND:

In the interests of minimising light pollution and to safeguard the amenities of the locality in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and saved policy D1 of the Local Plan.

15 No development shall commence until a site characterisation and remediation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the remediation scheme has been implemented in accordance with the approved details. The site characterisation, remediation scheme and implementation of the approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the following criteria:

(a) Site Characterisation

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall include:

o A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination

- o An assessment of the potential risks to:
 - o Human health
 - o Property
 - o Adjoining land
 - o Groundwaters and surface waters
 - o Ecological system

o An appraisal of remedial options and a recommendation of the preferred options

The site characterisation report shall be conducted in accordance with British Standards and current DEFRA and Environment Agency best practice.

(b) Submission of remediation scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site cannot be considered as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

(c) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of the development other than that required to carry out remediation. The Local Planning Authority shall be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed site investigation, remediation and development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

16 In the event that contamination is found that was not previously identified at any time when carrying out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken at that time in accordance with a site characterisation report that shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including remediation measures to render harmless the identified contamination given the end use of the site and the surrounding environment, including controlled waters. The remediation measures shall be implemented as approved and completed prior to the recommencement of works. Prior to the occupation of the approved development and following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

17 No development shall take place until a detailed sustainable surface water drainage scheme for the site based on the Flood Risk Assessment By Herrington Consulting Limited (dated December 2016) and sustainable drainage principles, to include, but not necessarily be limited to, the method of surface water disposal and a timetable for the implementation and a maintenance and management plan for the lifetime of the development, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The detailed drainage scheme shall demonstrate that the surface water generated by this development (for all rainfall durations and intensities up to and including the climate change adjusted critical 100 year storm) can be accommodated and disposed of through infiltration features located with the curtilage of the site alone.

Where infiltration is to be used to manage the surface water from the development, it will only be allowed within those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated to the Local Planning Authority that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters.

All surface water drainage from parking areas shall be passed through an interceptor designed and constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the site being drained.

The management and maintenance plan shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To ensure that the principle of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this process, to ensure ongoing efficiency of the drainage provisions and to protect vulnerable groundwater resources and human health from pollution in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

18 No development shall take place until a scheme for foul sewerage disposal from the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of any additional infrastructure required to mitigate the additional flows created by this development. The development shall be constructed and thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND: To prevent pollution in accordance with Thanet Local Plan Policy EP13 and guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

19 No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the written consent of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution caused by mobilised contaminants in line with paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

20 No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of

i) archaeological field evaluation works in accordance with a specification and written timetable which has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; and

ii) following on from the evaluation, any safeguarding measures to ensure preservation in situ of important archaeological remains and/or further archaeological investigation and recording in accordance with a specification and timetable which has been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure appropriate assessment of the archaeological implications of any development proposals and the subsequent mitigation of adverse impacts through preservation in situ or by record.

All ecological mitigation measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained in the Ecological Appraisal Report (April 2017) as already submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle with the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of any part of the development.

GROUND:

To ensure that the measures considered necessary as part of the ecological impact assessment are carried out as specified.

22 Prior to the completion of the development hereby approved details of how the development will enhance biodiversity shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These shall include the installation of bat and bird nesting boxes along with the installation of generous native planting where possible. The approved details shall be provided prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted and thereafter permanently retained.

GROUND:

To enhance biodiversity

23 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority for that phase. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and shall provide details of: i) the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors;

ii) construction vehicle loading/unloading, tuning facilities and access routes/arrangements;

iii) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

iv) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

v) wheel washing facilities and their use;

vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction including a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works

vii) a construction environmental management plan, including details of operation construction time, enclosures for noise emitting equipment, dust and waste management policy and construction site noise management including siting of stationary noisy or vibrating plant equipment.

GROUND:

To ensure pollution prevention measures are in place for all potentially polluting activities during construction in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 109 and in the interest of highway safety.

Details to be submitted pursuant to condition 1 shall be in accordance with parameters shown on drawing number 365_199_004.

GROUND:

To ensure the development does not have an adverse effect on the adjacent heritage assets."

Further to debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

295. <u>D05 - OL/TH/17/1447 - LAND ADJACENT LITTLE ORCHARD,</u> <u>CANTERBURY ROAD, ST NICHOLAS AT WADE</u>

PROPOSAL: Outline application for the erection of 30 No dwellings with construction of new access from Manor Road with all other matters reserved

Speaking in favour of the application was Mrs Scott.

Speaking raising points of concern was Ms Holmes.

Speaking raising points of concern was Mr Fermor.

Speaking as parish councillor was Councillor Bryant.

Speaking as ward councillor was Councillor Crow-Brown.

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be DEFERRED AND DELEGATED for approval subject to receipt of Section 106 agreement securing required planning obligations and the following conditions:

1 Approval of the details of the appearance, layout and scale of any buildings to be erected and the landscaping of the site, (herein called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced.

GROUND:

As no such details have been submitted.

2 Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

3 Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

4 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 2 years from the date of the approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

5 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved the access and visibility splays shown on drawing no. 757/201B shall be provided and thereafter permanently retained with no obstructions over 0.9 metres above carriageway level within the splays.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

6 Details pursuant to condition 1 shall include full details (in the form of scaled plans and / or written specifications) to illustrate the following: -

i) Parking provision in accordance with adopted standard.

ii) Turning areas

iii) secure, covered cycle parking facilities

The scheme shall be implemented as approved prior to the first occupation of the units hereby approved.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety

7 No development shall take place until full final details of the proposed highway works have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include:

- The proposed build out and priority changes on Manor Road and

- The provision of the footpath along Manor Road. together with a timescale for their provision.

These works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be permanently retained.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety and traffic flow in accordance with saved Local Plan Policy TR16.

8 The development hereby approved shall incorporate bound surface materials for the first 5 metres of any access from the edge of the highway.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

9 The gradient of any access shall be no steeper than 1 in 10 for the first 1.5 metres from the highway boundary and no steeper than 1 in 8 thereafter.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety

10 Details pursuant to condition 1 (in the form of scaled plans and/or written specifications) shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following; proposed roads, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, sewers, retaining walls, service routes, vehicle overhang margins, embankments, accesses, carriageway gradients, driveway gradients and street furniture.

The development shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

11 Prior to the first occupation of any of the units hereby approved the following works between a dwelling and the adopted highway shall be completed:

a) Footways and/or footpath, with the exception of the wearing course;

b) Carriageways with the exception of the wearing course but including a turning facility, highway drainage, visibility splays, street lighting, street nameplates and highway structures (if any).

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

12 Details pursuant to condition 1 shall not show any building exceeding 2 storeys with roof accommodation in height.

GROUND:

In the interests of the amenities of the locality in accordance with saved policy D1 of the Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.

13 No less than 70% of the total number of dwellings constructed pursuant to this planning permission shall be dwellings of two or more bedrooms.

GROUND:

To ensure the provision of a mix of house sizes and types to meet a range of community needs in accordance with saved Local Plan policy HO8.

14 Details pursuant to condition 1 shall identify a minimum of 15% of housing to lifetime homes and wheelchair standards and include the specification of such dwellings.

GROUND:

To meet the housing needs of the community in accordance with saved policy HO8 of the Local Plan.

15 Details to be submitted in pursuant to condition 1 shall include the location and size of the affordable housing units.

GROUND:

To ensure that the required level and type of affordable housing is provided in accordance with saved policy H14 of the Local Plan.

16 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, shall secure the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has first been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that the archaeological history of the site is recorded in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

17 Prior to the installation of any external lighting, a detailed outdoor lighting scheme shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the type of lights, the orientation/angle of the luminaries, the spacing and height of the lighting columns, the extent/levels of illumination over the site and on adjacent land and the measures to contain light within the curtilage of the site. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme and thereafter maintained as agreed.

GROUND:

In the interests of minimising light pollution and to safeguard the amenities of the locality in accordance with the NPPF and saved policy D1 of the Local Plan.

18 No development shall commence until a site characterisation and remediation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the remediation scheme has been implemented in accordance with the approved details. The site characterisation, remediation scheme and implementation of the approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the following criteria:

(a) Site Characterisation

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of

any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall include:

- o A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination
- o An assessment of the potential risks to:
 - o Human health
 - o Property
 - o Adjoining land
 - o Groundwaters and surface waters
 - o Ecological system
- o An appraisal of remedial options and a recommendation of the preferred options

The site characterisation report shall be conducted in accordance with British Standards and current DEFRA and Environment Agency best practice.

(b) Submission of remediation scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site cannot be considered as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

(c) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of the development other than that required to carry out remediation. The Local Planning Authority shall be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed site investigation, remediation and development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

19 In the event that contamination is found that was not previously identified at any time when carrying out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken at that time in accordance with a site characterisation report that shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including remediation measures to render harmless the identified contamination given the end use of the site and the surrounding environment, including controlled waters. The remediation measures shall be implemented as approved and completed prior to the recommencement of works. Prior to the occupation of the approved development and following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

20 No external meter cupboards, vents, flues or extract grilles or overhead supply cables shall be installed on any principle elevation unless in accordance with details of materials and design submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan

No development shall take place until a detailed sustainable surface water drainage scheme for the site based on the Surface Water Management Strategy incorporating a Flood Risk Assessment (dated September 2017) and sustainable drainage principles, to include, but not necessarily be limited to, the method of surface water disposal and a timetable for the implementation and a maintenance and management plan for the lifetime of the development, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The detailed drainage scheme shall demonstrate that the surface water generated by this development (for all rainfall durations and intensities up to and including the climate change adjusted critical 100 year storm) can be accommodated and disposed of through infiltration features located with the curtilage of the site alone.

Where infiltration is to be used to manage the surface water from the development, it will only be allowed within those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated to the Local Planning Authority that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters.

All surface water drainage from parking areas shall be passed through an interceptor designed and constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the site being drained.

The management and maintenance plan shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To ensure that the principle of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this process, to ensure ongoing efficiency of the drainage provisions and to protect vulnerable groundwater resources and human health from pollution in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

22 No development shall take place until a scheme for foul and sewerage disposal from the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of any additional infrastructure required to mitigate the additional flows created by this development. The development shall be constructed and thereafter maintained in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To prevent pollution in accordance with saved Local Plan Policy EP13 and guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

23 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority for that phase. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and shall provide details of:

i) the parking of vehicles for site operatives and visitors;

ii) construction vehicle loading/unloading, tuning facilities and access routes/arrangements;

iii) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

iv) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

v) wheel washing facilities and their use;

vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction including a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works

vii) a construction environmental management plan, including details of operation construction time, enclosures for noise emitting equipment, dust and waste management policy and construction site noise management including siting of stationary noisy or vibrating plant equipment.

ix) All hedgerows and trees on site to be retained shall be protected during construction in line with standard arboricultural best practice (BS 5837:2012)

GROUND:

To ensure pollution prevention measures are in place for all potentially polluting activities during construction in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 109 and in the interest of highway safety and biodiversity."

Following debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

296. <u>D06 - F/TH/17/0804 - LAND BETWEEN 47 AND 71 MONKTON STREET,</u> <u>MONKTON</u>

PROPOSAL: Erection of 20No. houses with associated access, parking and landscaping

Speaking in favour of the application was Mr Hume.

Speaking raising points of concern was Mrs Johnson.

Speaking raising points of concern was Miss Ransom.

It was proposed by the Chairman and seconded by the Vice Chairman:

"THAT the officer's recommendation be adopted, namely:

'That the application be DEFERRED AND DELEGATED for approval, subject to the receipt of a satisfactory Section 106 agreement to secure the required planning obligations. 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

GROUND:

In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Purchase Act 2004).

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the revised site plan numbered 003 Rev A, received 06 February 2018, and the plans numbered 005, 006, 008, 009, 010, 011, and 012, received 02 June 2017.

GROUND:

To secure the proper development of the area.

3 No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the implementation of:

(i) archaeological field evaluation works in accordance with a specification and written timetable which has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; and

(ii) following on from the evaluation, any safeguarding measures to ensure preservation in situ of important archaeological remains and/or further archaeological investigation and recording in accordance with a specification and timetable which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that features of archaeological interest are properly examined and recorded in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

4 No development shall commence until a site characterisation and remediation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the remediation scheme has been implemented in accordance with the approved details. The site characterisation, remediation scheme and implementation of the approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the following criteria:

(a) Site Characterisation

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, shall be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall include:

o A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination

o An assessment of the potential risks to:

- o Human health
- o Property
- o Adjoining land
- o Groundwaters and surface waters
- o Ecological system
- o An appraisal of remedial options and a recommendation of the preferred options

The site characterisation report shall be conducted in accordance with British Standards and current DEFRA and Environment Agency best practice.

(b) Submission of remediation scheme

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site cannot be considered as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

(c) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme

The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the commencement of the development other than that required to carry out remediation. The Local Planning Authority shall be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed site investigation, remediation and development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 In the event that contamination is found that was not previously identified at any time when carrying out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken at that time in accordance with a site characterisation report that shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including remediation measures to render harmless the identified contamination given the end use of the site and the surrounding environment, including controlled waters. The remediation measures shall be implemented as approved and completed prior to the recommencement of works. Prior to the occupation of the approved development and following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To ensure that the proposed development will not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

6 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a drainage strategy detailing the proposed means of foul disposal and an implementation timetable shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To prevent pollution, in accordance with the advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

7 Existing trees, shrubs and hedgerows identified for retention within the development site or existing trees growing on an adjacent site, where excavations, changes to land levels or underground works are within the crown spread, shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837: 2005 using the following protective fence specification:-

o Chestnut paling fence 1.2m in height, to BS 1722 part 4, securely mounted on 1.7m x 7cm x 7.5cm timber posts driven firmly into the ground. The fence shall be erected below the outer most limit of the branch spread or at a distance equal to half the height of the tree, whichever is the furthest from the tree, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

The protective fencing shall be erected before the works hereby approved or any site clearance work commences, and shall thereafter be maintained until the development has been completed.

At no time during the site works shall building materials, machinery, waste, chemicals, stored or piled soil, fires or vehicles be allowed within the protective fenced area.

Nothing shall be attached or fixed to any part of a retained tree and it should not be used as an anchor point.

There shall be no change in the original soil level, nor trenches excavated within the protective fenced area.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to adequately integrate the development into the environment, in accordance with Thanet Local Plan Policies D1 and D2.

8 Prior to the installation of any external lighting, a lighting design strategy for biodiversity shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall:

a) Identify those areas / features on site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that are likely to cause disturbance in or around their breeding sites and resting places or along important routes used to access key areas of their territory, e.g., for foraging.

b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using their territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting places.

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations set out in the strategy, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the strategy. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without prior to consent from the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

To safeguard protected species, in accordance with the NPPF.

9 Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, including vegetation clearance, an ecological landscape plan that demonstrates the location of the reptiles log piles (as detailed within the reptile precautionary strategy) adjacent to the boundary hedgerow, and the location of bat and bird boxes, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved ecological landscape plan, and the full reptile precautionary strategy (as detailed in paragraph 8 of the Reptile Survey Report), and shall thereafter be retained.

GROUND:

To safeguard protected species, in accordance with the NPPF.

10 Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, full details of both hard and soft landscape works, to include:

- species, size and location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas to be planted

- the treatment proposed for all hard surfaced areas beyond the limits of the highway

- walls, fences, other means of enclosure proposed

- the provision of hedgerow planting along the northern, western and eastern boundaries of the site, and part of the southern boundary,

- the provision of tree planting along the northern boundary of the site,
- ecological enhancements to the site.

shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to adequately integrate the development into the environment in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Thanet Local Plan

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development, or in accordance with a programme of works to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives any written consent to any variation.

GROUND:

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies D1 and D2 of the Thanet Local Plan

12 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, the proposed site access and footways, as shown on the approved plan numbered 003 Rev A, shall be completed and operational.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety and pedestrian movement, in accordance with the NPPF.

13 The following works between a dwelling and the adopted highway shall be completed prior to the first occupation of the dwelling:

(a) Footways and/or footpaths, with the exception of the wearing course;

(b) Carriageways, with the exception of the wearing course but including a turning facility, highway drainage, visibility splays, street lighting, street

nameplates and highway structures (if any).

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

14 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m x 2.4m shall be provided to the accesses onto Monkton Street, as shown on the approved plan numbered 003 Rev A, with no obstructions over 1 metre above carriageway level within the splays, which shall thereafter be maintained.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

15 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a Construction Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include the following:

(a) Routing of construction and delivery vehicles;

- (b) Parking and turning facilities for delivery and site personnel vehicles;
- (c) Wheel washing facilities;
- (d) Temporary traffic management/signage required;
- (e) Timing of deliveries.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

16 Prior to the first occupation of the development, the area shown on the approved plan numbered for the parking, manoeuvring and loading/unloading of vehicles shall be operational prior to any part of the development hereby approved being brought into use. The area approved shall thereafter be maintained for that purpose.

GROUND:

Development without adequate provision for the parking or turning of cars is likely to lead to parking inconvenient to other road users and detrimental to amenity and in pursuance of policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan.

17 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, details of the measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

GROUND:

In the interests of highway safety.

18 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby approved shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved samples.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan

19 The windows and doors to be inserted within the development hereby permitted shall be constructed of timber, as agreed by the agent in correspondence received 6th February 2018.

GROUND:

In the interests of visual amenity, and to protect the setting of the adjacent Grade II Listed building, in accordance with Policy D1 of the Thanet Local Plan and the NPPF.

20 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a detailed sustainable surface water drainage scheme for the site shall be submitted to (and approved in writing by) the local planning authority. The detailed drainage scheme shall demonstrate that the surface water generated by this development (for all rainfall durations and intensities up to and including the climate change adjusted critical 100 year storm) can be accommodated without increase to flood risk on or off-site and discharged at an rate and location as agreed (approved in writing by) the local planning authority. The drainage scheme shall also demonstrate that silt and pollutants resulting from the site use and construction can be adequately managed, and that pollutants are not mobilised, to ensure that contamination is not impacted and there is no pollution risk to receiving waters.

GROUND:

To ensure the development is served by satisfactory arrangements for the disposal of surface water and to ensure that the development does not exacerbate the risk of on/off site flooding, in accordance with the NPPF.

21 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, an operation and maintenance manual for the proposed sustainable drainage scheme shall be submitted to (and approved in writing) by the local planning authority. The manual at a minimum shall include the following details:

o A description of the drainage system and it's key components

o An as-built general arrangement plan with the location of drainage measures and critical features clearly marked

o An approximate timetable for the implementation of the drainage system

o Details of the future maintenance requirements of each drainage or SuDS component, and the frequency of such inspections and maintenance activities

o Details of who will undertake inspections and maintenance activities, including the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime.

The drainage scheme as approved shall subsequently be maintained in accordance with these details.

GROUND:

To ensure that any measures to mitigate flood risk and protect water quality on/off the site are fully implemented and maintained (both during and after construction), as per the requirements of paragraph 103 of the NPPF and its associated Non-Statutory Technical Standards.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Verification Report pertaining to the surface water drainage system, carried out by a suitably qualified professional, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall demonstrate the suitable operation of the drainage system such that flood risk is appropriately managed, as approved by the Lead Local Flood Authority. The Report shall contain information and evidence (including photographs) of earthworks; details and locations of inlets, outlets and control structures; extent of planting; details of materials utilised in construction including subsoil, topsoil, aggregate and membrane liners; full as built drawings; and topographical survey of 'as constructed' features.

GROUND:

To ensure that flood risks from development to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development as constructed is compliant with the National Planning Policy Framework.

23 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, details that demonstrate that off-site surface water drainage works are appropriately

secured and protected shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

GROUND:

To ensure the development is served by satisfactory arrangements for the disposal of surface water.

All dwellings hereby permitted shall be provided with the ability for connection to Superfast Fibre Optic Broadband 'fibre to the premises', where there is adequate capacity.

GROUND:

To serve the future occupants of the development in accordance with the guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework."

Following debate, the motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

Meeting concluded : 9.10pm